1)
2)
3)
4)
S)

6)
7)
8)

Location: Crooks Community Center (701 S West Ave, Crooks, SD, 57020)

Call to order

City of Crooks
Planning and Zoning Commission
Meeting agenda
Date: 03/27/2023
Time: 7:00pm/CST

Approve posted agenda
Approve meeting minutes

Open Comments
Public hearings:

a. Recommendation to adopt revised Crooks Zoning Regulations

New business: None.
Old business: None.

Adjourn

The City of Crooks is an equal opportunity provider.



City of Crooks
Planning and Zoning Commission

Meeting minutes
December 12, 2022

At 6:30pm, Director Richardson called the meeting to order at the Crooks Community Center.
Answering roll call were Commissioner Glasford, Commissioner Masgai, Commissioner
Gillespie, Commissioner Jongewaard, Commissioner Papke, and PZ Director Richardson.
Absent with notice: Commissioner Hemme.

Approve posted agenda. Motion by Jongewaard to approve agenda, seconded by Gillespie. No
discussion. All aye, motion carried.

Approve meeting minutes. Motion by Masgai to approve meeting minutes, seconded by
Jongewaard. No discussion. All aye, motion carried.

Open comments. No open comments were received from the public.

Public hearings. Addendum TIF #2 plan. Richardson opened the hearing at 6:31pm. Tobin
Morris, TIF Consultant, and Marwin Hofer, developer (“DWBP”) of Willow Creed Ridge, spoke
on the amendment for the TIF #2 plan. The amendment is made due to the opportunity of
developing a senior living facility in the development, furthering the goal of economic
development in the Crooks community. The facility will create jobs, expedite receipt of TIF
revenues, and assist with timelier satisfaction of the TIF debt. The amendment will modify the
revenue split between the developer and the City to 50/50 until the City has recouped its share of
TIF revenues. Richardson opened the floor for comments from the board. No comments were
received. Richardson opened the floor for comments from the public. No comments were
received from the public. Richardson closed the hearing at 6:36pm.

New business.

a) Resolution 2022-03 (”Approving increased project costs for TIF #2”°). Motion by
Jongewaard to approve resolution, seconded by Papke. No discussion. All aye, motion
carried.

CROOKS PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION
RESOLUTION #2022-03

A RESOLUTION CREATING A MODIFICATION TO TAX INCREMENT FINANCING
DISTRICT NUMBER TWO, CITY OF CROOKS, AND THE ASSOCIATED PROJECT
COSTS

WHEREAS, the Developer requests a modification to the allowable project costs
associated with the creation of a tax increment financing district for purpose of developing a
currently undeveloped property to augment the multi-family residential housing, commercial
presence, as well as a senior living facility in the City of Crooks.

The City of Crooks is an equal opportunity provider. 1



WHEREAS, the City of Crooks passed a resolution on May 31%, 2022,consenting to
creating “Tax Increment Financing District Number Two, City of Crooks” (hereinafter “TIF
District #27).

WHEREAS, the City of Crooks submitted a project plan complying with the
requirements of SDCL chapter 11-9 for the creation of TIF District #2 with total project costs of
$5,495,224; and

WHEREAS, the City of Crooks adopted TIF District #2 on May 31, 2022; and

WHEREAS, due to inflation and unforeseen project costs, the City of Crooks is
requesting an increase of $1,000,000 to the project plan to an amount of $5,000,000 which is less
than 35% of the original amount approved, per SDCL 11-9-23

WHEREAS, SDCL § 11-9-23 Redetermination of tax increment base when project
costs increased by amendment of plan. If the municipality adopts an amendment to the
original project plan for any district that includes additional project costs for which tax
increments may be received by the municipality, the tax increment base for the district shall be
redetermined pursuant to § 11-9-20. The tax increment base as redetermined under this section is
effective for the purposes of this chapter only if it exceeds the original tax increment base
determined pursuant to § 11-9-20. The provisions of this section do not apply if the additional
project costs are thirty-five percent or less than the amount approved in the original project plan
and the additional project costs will be incurred before the expiration of the period specified in
§ 11-9-13.

WHEREAS, SDCL § 11-9-14 For the purposes of this chapter, the term, project costs,
are any expenditures made or estimated to be made, or monetary obligations incurred or
estimated to be incurred, by a municipality that are listed in a project plan as grants or costs of
public works or improvements within a district, plus any incidental costs diminished by any
income, special assessments, or other revenues, other than tax increments, received, or
reasonably expected to be received, by the municipality in connection with the implementation
of the plan.

WHEREAS, amendments to the Project Plan dated December 12", 2022 have been updated to
reflect the new amount of the total amount to be reimbursed and no expenditure may be provided
for in the plan more than five years after a district is created unless an amendment is adopted by
the governing body pursuant to § 11-9-23

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, THE CITY OF CROOKS PLANNING
AND ZONINGCOMMISSION HEREBY:

1. Authority and Declaration of Necessity. The Planning and Zoning Commission
declares the necessity for the approval of amending TIF District #2 plan, pursuant to
SDCL Chapter 11-9, and finds it necessary, to achieve the economic development goals
of the City of Crooks, and thus is requesting an increase of $1,000,000 to the project plan

The City of Crooks is an equal opportunity provider. 2


https://sdlegislature.gov/Statutes/Codified_Laws/DisplayStatute.aspx?Type=Statute&Statute=11-9-23

to an amount of $5,000,000 which is less than 35% of the original amount approved, per
SDCL § 11-9-23

2. Findings. The Planning and Zoning Commission finds that there is statutory authority to
refer said amendment to TIF District #2 to the Crooks City Council for their
consideration.

a. Less than 5 years have passed since creation of the district

b. The additional project costs are less than 35% and thus do not constitute a
redetermination of the tax increment base.

c. Taxing entities have been notified by First Class Mail.

d. South Dakota Department of Revenue has issued a letter stating the Base Value
will not be changed.

3. Recommendation of Amending Tax Increment Plan. The Planning and Zoning
Commission of the City of Crooks does hereby adopt the amendment of TIF District #2
and recommends to the City of Crooks City Council.

Ayes: Glasford, Papke, Jongewaard, Gillespie, Masgai, Richardson
Nays:
Abstains:

Chairman

Finance Officer

Adopted: 12/12/2022
Published:
Effective:

Old business. None.

Adjourn. Motion by Jongewaard to adjourn meeting at 6:37pm, seconded by Glasford. No
discussion. All aye, motion carried.

Respectfully submitted,
Tobias Schantz

City Administrator/Finance Officer
City of Crooks, SD

Published:
Published once at the approximate cost of:

The City of Crooks is an equal opportunity provider. 3



City of Crooks
Planning and Zoning Commission
Notice of Hearing

Notice is hereby given that the Crooks Planning and Zoning Commission will hold a
hearing at 7:00pm/CST on the 27" day of March, 2023 at the Crooks Community Center
(701 S West Ave, Crooks, SD, 57020) regarding the recommendation to adopt revised
zoning regulations for the City of Crooks.

Notice is further given that at the time and place of aforesaid any person may appear and
be heard upon all matters pertaining to the hearing. Interested parties may appear
personally or through their designated agent(s), attorney(s), or representative(s). Anyone
unable to attend may submit written comments prior to the hearing at in-person at the
municipal office (701 S West Ave, Crooks, SD) or via email at fo@crookssd.org.

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA), if you need special
assistance to participate in this hearing, please contact the Crooks Finance Officer at
(605) 543-5238. Anyone who is deaf, hard-of-hearing or speech-disabled may utilize
Relay South Dakota at (800) 877-1113 (TTY/Voice). Notification 48 hours prior to the
hearing will enable the City to make reasonable arrangements to ensure accessibility to
this hearing.

Any interested party may appear personally or by their agent or attorney.

Scott Richardson
Planning and Zoning Director

Published:
Published once at the approximate cost of: $

The City of Crooks is an equal opportunity provider



2023 Revised Crooks Zoning
Regulations

Prepared by the South Eastern Council of Governments at the direction of the
Planning Commission and City Council of the City of Crooks, South Dakota.



CHAPTER 1 — GENERAL PROVISIONS 5
1.01 TITLE AND APPLICATION 5
1.02 JURISDICTION 5
1.03 PURPOSE 5
1.04 PROVISIONS OF ORDINANCE DECLARED TO BE MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS 5
1.05 PENALTIES FOR VIOLATION 5
1.06 SEPARABILITY CLAUSE 6
1.07 REPEAL OF CONFLICTING ORDINANCES 6
1.08 EFFECTIVE DATE 6
CHAPTER 2 — DISTRICTS AND BOUNDARIES 7
2.01 DISTRICTS DESIGNATED 7
2.02 ADOPTION OF OFFICIAL ZONING MAP 7
2.03 CHANGES TO OFFICIAL ZONING MAP 7
2.04 INTERPRETATION OF DISTRICT BOUNDARIES 7
2.05 ANNEXATIONS 8
CHAPTER 3 — NRC: NATURAL RESOURCE CONSERVATION DISTRICT 9
3.01 PERMITTED USES 9
3.02 CONDITIONAL USES 10
3.03 LOTAND YARD REGULATIONS 11
CHAPTER 4 — R-1: SINGLE FAMILY RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT 12
4.01 PEeRMITTED USES 12
4.02 CONDITIONAL USES 13
4.03 LoT AND YARD REGULATIONS 14
CHAPTER 5 — R-2: MULTI-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT 16
5.01 PERMITTED USES 16
5.02 CONDITIONAL USES 17
5.03 LOT AND YARD REGULATIONS 18
CHAPTER 6 — R-3: MANUFACTURED HOUSING RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT 20
6.01 PERMITTED USES 20



6.02 CONDITIONAL USES 20
6.03 LOT AND YARD REGULATIONS 21
CHAPTER 7 — CB: CENTRAL BUSINESS DISTRICT 23
7.01 PERMITTED USES 23
7.02 CONDITIONAL USES 24
7.03 LOT AND YARD REGULATIONS 25
CHAPTER 8 — GB: GENERAL BUSINESS DISTRICT 27
8.01 PERMITTED USES 27
8.02 CONDITIONAL USES 29
8.03 LoT AND YARD REGULATIONS 31
CHAPTER 9 — LI: LIGHT INDUSTRIAL DISTRICT 33
9.01 PERMITTED USES 33
9.02 CONDITIONAL USES 35
9.03 LOT AND YARD REGULATIONS 36
CHAPTER 10 — HI: HEAVY INDUSTRIAL DISTRICT 39
10.01 PERMITTED USES 39
10.02 CONDITIONAL USES 40
10.03 LOT AND YARD REGULATIONS 43
CHAPTER 11 — PUD: PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 45
11.01 INTENT COMPLIANCE WITH COMPREHENSIVE PLAN 45
11.02 PROCEDURE 45
11.03 INITIAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN 47
11.04 FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN 48
11.05 AMENDMENTS 50
CHAPTER 12 — ADDITIONAL USE REGULATIONS 53
12.01 RESERVED 53
12.02 VISIBILITY AT INTERSECTIONS AND DRIVEWAYS 53
12.03 ACCESSORY BUILDINGS, GARAGES, RECREATIONAL FACILITIES, AND MISCELLANEOUS STRUCTURES 54

2



12.04 OFF-STREET PARKING

61

12.05 OFF-STREET LOADING REQUIREMENTS 64
12.06 SIGNS 65
12.07 FENCES 76
12.08 TELECOMMUNICATIONS TOWER, ANTENNA SUPPORT STRUCTURES, AND WIRELESS COMMUNICATIONS

FACILITIES 78
12.09 SITE-BUILT SINGLE-FAMILY AND MULTI-FAMILY DWELLING STANDARDS 79
12.10 LANDSCAPING STANDARDS 80
12.11 HoME OCCUPATIONS 81
12.12 MANUFACTURED HOME REQUIREMENTS 82
12.13 BED AND BREAKFAST ESTABLISHMENTS 83
12.14 ARCHITECTURAL STANDARDS 84
12.15 CANNABIS ESTABLISHMENTS 85
12.16 MINI-WAREHOUSES AND CONSUMER STORAGE UNITS 89
CHAPTER 13 — ADJUSTMENTS TO YARD REGULATIONS 91
13.01 ADJUSTMENTS TO FRONT YARD REQUIREMENTS 91
13.02 ADJUSTMENTS TO SIDE YARD REQUIREMENTS 91
13.03 PROJECTION FROM BUILDINGS 91
CHAPTER 14 - NON-CONFORMING USES 93
14.01 USES AND STRUCTURES 93
14.02 CONTINUATION OF NON-STANDARD USES 93
CHAPTER 15 — ADMINISTRATION AND ENFORCEMENT 95
15.01 POWERS AND DUTIES 95
15.02 RIGHT OF ENTRY 95
15.03 Stop ORDER 95
CHAPTER 16 — BUILDING PERMITS AND FEES 97
16.01 BUILDING PERMITS 97
16.02 FEEs 97
16.03 EXPIRATION OF A BUILDING PERMIT 97
CHAPTER 17 — BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT 99




17.01 ESTABLISHMENT

99

17.02 POWERS AND DUTIES 99
17.03 APPEAL PROCEDURE 99
17.04 VARIANCES 100
17.05 COURT REVIEW 102
CHAPTER 18 — AMENDMENTS AND CHANGE OF ZONE 103
18.01 PROCEDURE 103
CHAPTER 19 — CONDITIONAL USE PERMITS 105
19.01 CONDITIONAL USES 105
19.02 COURT REVIEW 109
CHAPTER 20 — DEFINITIONS 110
20.01 PURPOSE 110
20.02 DEFINITIONS 110



Chapter 1 — General Provisions

1.01 Title and Application

These regulations shall be referenced to as Zoning Ordinances of the City of Crooks.

1.02 Jurisdiction

The provisions of this ordinance shall apply to all territory within the boundaries of the City of
Crooks, South Dakota, as established on the Official Zoning Map of the City of Crooks.

1.03 Purpose

These regulations have been based on the Crooks Comprehensive Plan adopted and in
conformance with Chapter 11-4 and 11-6 of the South Dakota Codified Laws. These regulations
are designed to carry out the goals, objectives, and policies of the Comprehensive Plan.

The Zoning Ordinances are intended to:

e Lessen congestion in the streets;

e Secure safety from fire, panic, and other dangers;

e Promote health and the general welfare;

e Provide adequate light and air;

e Prevent overcrowding of land;

e Avoid undue concentrations of populations; and

e Facilitate the adequate provision of transportation, water, sewers, school, parks, and
other public necessities.

1.04 Provisions of Ordinance Declared to be Minimum Requirements

In their interpretation and application, the provisions of this Ordinance shall be held to be
minimum requirements, adopted for the promotion of the public health, safety, and general
welfare. Wherever the requirements of this Ordinance are at variance with requirements of any
other lawfully adopted rules, regulations, ordinances, or deed restrictions, the most restrictive
or that which imposes the higher standards, shall govern.

1.05 Penalties for Violation



Violation of the provisions of this ordinance or failure to comply with any of its requirements,
including violations of conditions established in granting of Variances, shall constitute a
misdemeanor. Any person who violates this ordinance or fails to comply with any of its
requirements shall upon conviction be subject to the penalties established by South Dakota
law. Each day such violation continues shall be considered a separate offense.

1.06 Separability Clause

Should any section or provision of this ordinance be declared by the courts to be
unconstitutional or invalid, such decision shall not affect the validity of the ordinance as a
whole, or any part other than the part so declared to be unconstitutional or invalid.

1.07 Repeal of Conflicting Ordinances

All prior ordinances or parts of prior ordinances in conflict with this ordinance are hereby
declared repealed.

1.08 Effective Date

These regulations shall be in full force and effect from and after their passage, approval,
publication, and effective date of the Zoning Ordinance of the City of Crooks, as provided for by
South Dakota law.



Chapter 2 — Districts and Boundaries

2.01 Districts Designated

The City is hereby divided into the following districts:

NRC Flood Plain/Conservation

R-1 Residential — Single Family

R-2 Residential — Multi-Family

R-3 Residential — Manufactured Housing
CB Central Business

GB General Business

LI Light Industrial

HI Heavy Industrial

2.02 Adoption of Official Zoning Map

The Official Zoning Map for the City of Crooks, on record with the Finance Officer, is hereby
adopted by reference and declared to be a part of this ordinance.

2.03 Changes to Official Zoning Map

Changes to or replacements of the Official Zoning Map shall require amendment of these
regulations by ordinance, as provided in Chapter 18.01 of these regulations.

2.04 Interpretation of District Boundaries

Where uncertainty exists as to the boundaries of the districts as shown on the Official Zoning
Map, the following rules shall apply:

A. Boundaries indicated as approximately following platted lot lines or city limits shall be
interpreted to follow such platted lot lines or city limits;

B. Boundaries indicated as approximately following railroad lines shall be interpreted to be
midway between the main tracks;



C. Boundaries indicated as approximately following the center lines of streets or other
rights-of-way, or streams or other bodies of water, shall be interpreted to follow such
center lines;

D. Distances not specifically indicated on the Official Zoning Map shall be determined by
the scale of the map. Where physical or cultural features existing on the ground are a
variance with those shown on the Official Zoning Map, the Board of Adjustment, as
established in Chapter 16, shall interpret the district boundaries;

E. Where a district boundary line divides a lot which was in single ownership at the time of
passage of this ordinance, the Board of Adjustment may permit, as a Conditional Use
Permit, the extension of the regulations for either portion of the lot into the remaining
portion of the lot.

2.05 Annexations

In all territories which may hereafter be annexed to the City of Crooks, the zoning districts as
they exist in Minnehaha County shall be continued until otherwise changed by ordinance.



Chapter 3 — NRC: Natural Resource
Conservation District

3.01 Permitted Uses

The purpose of this district is to preserve lands best suited for natural drainage areas, public
open space, and agricultural uses from encroachment by incompatible uses. The area will also
provide protection from floods and erosion, to protect views, to preserve natural settings for
wildlife habitats, to add to the aesthetic quality of the community, and to lessen the urban

density.
Permitted Use Applicable Standards
Agriculture 12.02

12.02, 12.04, 12.09, 12.10 and not within identified

Farm Dwelling, Single-Family floodplain area

12.02, 12.04, 12.06;

Golf Course One freestanding sign as allowed within 12.06
Public Park Areas 12.02,12.06
12.02,12.10;
Electrical Substation An opaque screen, six feet in height located at all setback

lines

12.02, 12.04, 12.06, 12.10

Public Utility Facility One freestanding sign as allowed within 12.06



Cemeteries

Fences

Bed and Breakfast

Accessory Use and Structure
(i.e. garage, shed, etc)

3.02 Conditional Uses

Conditional Use

One additional single-family
dwelling or manufactured
home

Wireless Communication
Facility on existing support
structure

Municipally Owned Waste
Water Treatment Facility

Home Occupation

12.02 and not within an identified flood plain area;

One freestanding sign as allowed within 12.06;

At least 2 acres in size and adequate road system within
cemetery

12.07

12.13 and all applicable farm dwelling standards;
One freestanding sign as allowed within 12.06

12.02,12.03;
(see definition)

Applicable Standards

19.01

Said dwelling shall be located within the farmstead
perimeter;

All farm dwelling, single-family requirements apply;
Not within an identified floodplain area

12.08, 19.01, and not within an identified floodplain area

12.02, 12.04, 12.05, 12.06, 12.10, 19.01

12.11, 19.01, and all applicable dwelling standards

10



Accessory Structure (i.e.

garage, shed, etc.) which does
not meet the requirements as
allowed within Chapter 12.03

19.01

3.03 Lot and Yard Regulations

All measurements shall be taken from the lot line to the building line (see definitions). A
parking lot is not included as a portion of a side yard or rear yard (see 12.04).

Lot Area Lot Width @ Front Yard Side Yard Rear Yard w
Height
All Uses 5 Acres 150 feet 75 feet 30 feet 50 feet 35 feet

Exceptions:

#1 See Adjustments to Yard Regulations (Chapter 12) for specific exceptions.

11



Chapter 4 — R-1: Single Family Residential

District

The purpose of this district is to provide for certain low density residential areas the City has

now developed primarily with one family detached dwellings and where similar development is

likely to occur.

4.01 Permitted Uses

Permitted Use

Single-Family Detached
Dwellings

Churches

Libraries

Schools

Electrical Substation

Neighborhood Utilities

Applicable Standards

12.02,12.04, 12.06, 12.09, 12.10

12.02, 12.04, 12.10;

All parking lots being 8 feet from all residential properties;
One of the principle frontages shall abut upon an arterial or
collector street;

One freestanding sign as allowed within 12.06

12.02, 12.04, 12.10;
All parking lots being 8 feet from all residential properties;
One freestanding sign as allowed within 12.06

12.02,12.04,12.07,12.10;

All parking lots being 8 feet from all residential properties;
One of the principle frontages shall abut upon an arterial or
collector street;

One freestanding sign as allowed within 12.06

12.02, 12.10;
An opaque screen, six feet in height located at all setback
lines

12.02

12



Fences

Accessory Use and Structure
(i.e. garage, shed, etc)

4.02 Conditional Uses

Conditional Use

Single-Family Attached
Dwelling (up to 2)

Group Day Care

Bed and Breakfast

Group Home (see definition)

Private Garage (as a principal
use)

Accessory Structure (i.e.

garage, shed, etc.) which does
not meet the requirements as
allowed within Chapter 12.03

12.07

12.02,12.03;
(see definition)

Applicable Standards

12.02, 12.04, 12.06, 12.09, 12.10, 19.01

19.01;

A safe pickup and drop off area must be provided for
children;

All applicable dwelling standards apply

12.13, 19.01, and all single-family detached dwelling
standards apply
One freestanding sign as allowed within 12.06

19.01;

Structure must be a single housekeeping unit;
Applicant must provide copy of state agency license;
All single-family detached dwelling standards apply

19.01

19.01

13



4.03 Lot and Yard Regulations

All measurements shall be taken from the lot line to the building line (see definitions). A
parking lot is not included as a portion of a side yard or rear yard (see 12.04). Lot coverage shall
not exceed 50% in R-1 Districts.

Lot Area Lot Width B Side Yard Rear Yard MLI.mu
Yard m Height
Single Family 9,600 sq. 80 feet 25 feet
Detached ft. See#l = See #4 7 feet 30feet | 35feet
Single Family 0’ or7 on
Attached (2) 2 4,800 sq. 40 feet 25 feet nonparty 30 feet 35 feet
ft. See #4 .
Lots wall side
Single Family 9,600 sq. 25 feet
Attached (2) 1 Lot ft. 80 feet See #4 7 feet 30 feet 35 feet
All Other Uses 9,600 5. 80 feet 25 feet 7 feet 30 feet 35 feet
- ft. See #4

Exceptions:

#1 A residence may be constructed on a lot-of-record which has a lot width of less than 80
feet.

#2 For a lot located on a cul-de-sac bulb, the required lot width will be measured at the
required front yard setback line; however, the minimum lot width at the right-of-way

line shall not be less than 50 feet.

#3 There shall be a required front yard on each street side of a double-frontage lot. There
shall be a required front yard on each street side of a corner lot.

#4 One required front yard may be reduced to 20 feet on corner lots.

14



#5 See also Adjustments to Yard Regulations (Chapter 13) for other specific exceptions.

15



Chapter 5 — R-2: Multi-Family Residential
District

The purpose of this district is to provide for certain high density residential areas the City has
now developed primarily with single-family, two-family, and multiple family dwellings and
where similar development is likely to occur.

5.01 Permitted Uses

Permitted Use Applicable Standards

12.02, 12.04, 12.09, 12.10;

Multiple Dwellings One freestanding sign as allowed within 12.06

Single-Family Detached 12.02, 12.04, 12.06, 12.09, 12.10

Dwellings
Single-Family Attached 12.02, 12.04, 12.06, 12.09, 12.10;
Dwellings This includes town homes and duplexes

12.02, 12.04, 12.10;

All parking lots being 8 feet from all residential properties;
Churches One of the principle frontages shall abut upon an arterial or

collector street;

One freestanding sign as allowed within 12.06

12.02, 12.04, 12.10;
Libraries All parking lots being 8 feet from all residential properties;
One freestanding sign as allowed within 12.06

12.02,12.04, 12.07, 12.10;

All parking lots being 8 feet from all residential properties;
Schools One of the principle frontages shall abut upon an arterial or

collector street;

One freestanding sign as allowed within 12.06

16



12.02, 12.10;

Electrical Substation An opaque screen, six feet in height located at all setback
lines

Neighborhood Utilities 12.02

Fences 12.07

Accessory Use and Structure 12.02,12.03;
(i.e. garage, shed, etc) (see definition)

5.02 Conditional Uses

Conditional Use Applicable Standards

19.01;

A safe pickup and drop off area must be provided for
children;

All applicable dwelling standards apply

Group Day Care

Home Occupation 12.11, 19.01, and all applicable dwelling standards

12.04, 12.10, 19.01;

Applicant must provide copy of Department of Health
license;

One freestanding sign as allowed within 12.06

Assisted Living Facility

12.13, 19.01, and all single-family detached dwelling
Bed and Breakfast standards apply
One freestanding sign as allowed within 12.06

17



12.02, 12.04, 12.10, 19.01;

Applicant must provide copy of Department of Health
license;

One freestanding sign as allowed within 12.06

19.01;

Structure must be a single housekeeping unit;
Applicant must provide copy of state agency license;
All single-family detached dwelling standards apply

Nursing Home

Group Home (see definition)

e eresE 12.02,12.04, 1_2.06., 12.10, 19.01; o
One freestanding sign as allowed within 12.06
Accessory Structure (i.e.
garage, shed, etc.) which does
not meet the requirements as
allowed within Chapter 12.03

19.01

5.03 Lot and Yard Regulations

Lot Area Lot Width B Side Yard Rear Yard —Mam_mum
Yard Height
3 to 8 Multiple 7,500 sq. 25 feet 7 feet
Dwelling Units ft 50 feet See #4 See #1 10 feet 35 feet
9 to 12 Multiple 20,000 sq. 25 feet
Dwelling Units fr. 75 feet See #4 15 feet 10 feet 35 feet
Over 1? Multl.ple 30,000 sq. 100 feet 25 feet 15 feet 10 feet 35 feet
Dwelling Units ft. See #4

18



Single-Family 7,500 sq. 75 feet 25 feet

Detached ft. See #2 See #4 7 feet 25 feet 35 feet
0’ or 10’
Single-Family 6,500 sq. 25 feet on
Attached ft. 30 feet See #4 nonparty 25 feet 35 feet
wall side
All Other Uses 7,500 5. 75 feet 25 feet 15 feet 25 feet 35 feet
ft. See #4

Exceptions:

#1 The side yard will be required to be increased to 10 feet when the building is three
stories in height or more.

#2 A residence may be constructed on a lot-of-record which has a lot width of less than 75
feet.

#3 There shall be a required front yard on each street side of a double frontage lot. There
shall be a required front yard on each street side of a corner lot.

#4 One required front yard may be reduced to 20 feet on corner lots.

#5 See also Adjustment to Yard Regulations (Chapter 13) for other specific exceptions.

19



Chapter 6 — R-3: Manufactured Housing
Residential District

The purpose of this district is to provide for high density residential areas in the City that may

be developed for all types of manufactured housing and support facilities.

6.01 Permitted Uses

Permitted Use

Manufactured Homes in
Licensed Manufactured Home
Parks

Manufactured Homes

Electrical Substation

Neighborhood Utilities

Accessory Use and Structure
(i.e. garage, shed, etc)

6.02 Conditional Uses

Conditional Use

Applicable Standards

12.02,12.03,12.04,12.06, 12.10, 12.12;
Municipal code regulations regarding manufactured home
parks

12.02,12.03, 12.04, 12.06, 12.10, 12.12;
Municipal code regulations regarding manufactured home
parks

12.02,12.10;
An opaque screen, six feet in height located at all setback
lines

12.02

12.02, 12.03;
(see definition)

Applicable Standards

20



12.02,12.04,12.10, 19.01

All parking lots being 8 feet from all residential properties;
Churches One of the principle frontages shall abut upon an arterial or

collector street;

One freestanding sign as allowed within 12.06

12.02,12.04, 12.07,12.10, 19.01;

All parking lots being 8 feet from all residential properties;
Schools One of the principle frontages shall abut upon an arterial or

collector street;

One freestanding sign as allowed within 12.06

19.01;
Group Day Care A s.afe pickup and drop off area must be provided for
children;
All applicable dwelling standards apply
19.01;

Structure must be a single housekeeping unit;
Applicant must provide copy of state agency license;
All single-family detached dwelling standards apply

Group Home (see definition)

Accessory Structure (i.e.

garage, shed, etc.) which does
not meet the requirements as
allowed within Chapter 12.03

19.01

6.03 Lot and Yard Regulations

All measurements shall be taken from the lot line to the building line (see definition). A parking
lot is not included as a portion of a side yard or rear yard (see 12.04).

A. Each manufactured home park shall be at least five (5) acres.

B. The licensed manufactured home park shall be surrounded by a landscaped area 25 feet
wide along all public streets and all manufactured home park boundaries.

C. The entrance to the manufactured home park shall be allowed one freestanding sign as

allowed for specific uses in Chapter 12.06.

Lot Area Lot Width Al Side Yard Rear Yard w
Yard Height

21



5,500 sq.

Residential Uses 50 feet 25 feet 5 feet ** 25 feet 35 feet

ft.
Corner Lots 6’0?,? >4 60 feet 25 feet * | 5 feet ** 25 feet 35 feet
All Other Uses 6’0?,? >4 60 feet 25 feet 15 feet 25 feet 35 feet

*  One required front yard may be reduced to 20 feet
** The side yard will be required to be increased to 10 feet when the building is 3 stories in

height or more.

Exceptions:

#1 See also Adjustments to Yard Regulations (Chapter 13) for other specific exceptions.

22



Chapter 7 — CB: Central Business District

The purpose of this district is to provide a commercial area for those establishments serving the
general shopping needs of the trade area, with specific attention to preserving the City’s Main
Street Commercial Core. The grouping of uses is intended to preserve and improve the
character and economic vitality of Main Street.

7.01 Permitted Uses

Permitted Use Applicable Standards

Retail Trade or Service 12.02,12.04, 12.05, 12.06, 12.10
Office 12.02, 12.04, 12.05, 12.06, 12.10
Personal Service 12.02, 12.04, 12.05, 12.06, 12.10
Hotel/Motel 12.02,12.04, 12.05, 12.06, 12.10

Gasoline Dispensing Station 12.02,12.04, 12.05, 12.06, 12.10

Public Utility Facility 12.02,12.04, 12.05, 12.06, 12.10

Mortuary 12.02, 12.04, 12.05, 12.06, 12.10

23



Private Club

Churches

Arcade

Rooming/Boarding House

Accessory Use and Structure
(i.e. garage, shed, etc)

Fences

Commercial Parking
Lots/Parking Ramps

12.02,12.04, 12.05, 12.06, 12.10

12.02,12.04, 12.05, 12.06, 12.10

12.02,12.04, 12.05, 12.06, 12.10;
Subject to not being located within 500 feet of an adult
use*

12.02,12.04, 12.05, 12.06, 12.12;
Subject to the residence being constructed above first floor

12.02,12.03;
(see definition)

12.07

12.02,12.04, 12.06, 12.10

* Measured from the closest point of the outside walls of both structures.

7.02 Conditional Uses

Conditional Use

Dwellings

Applicable Standards

12.02,12.04, 12.05, 12.06, 12.10, 19.01;
No dwelling shall be located on the first floor

24



Adult Oriented Business

Electrical Substation

Wireless Communication
Facility on existing support
structure

Day Care Center

Motor Vehicle Repair Shop

Off/On-Sale Alcoholic
Beverage Establishment

Telecommunications Tower

Accessory Structure (i.e.

garage, shed, etc.) which does
not meet the requirements as
allowed within Chapter 12.03

Cannabis Dispensary

12.02,12.04, 12.05, 12.06, 12.10, 19.01;
SDCL 11-12-2,3

12.02, 12.10, 19.01;
An opaque screen, six feet in height located at all setback
lines

12.08, 19.01, and not within an identified floodplain area

12.02,12.04, 12.05, 12.06, 12.10, 19.01;
Adequate and safe playground area with a fence four (4)
feet high (see 12.07)

12.02,12.04, 12.05, 12.06, 12.10, 19.01

Subject to adequate number of parking spots to allow
temporary storage of the cars only while being repaired,
not exceeding twenty-one (21) days.

12.02, 12.04, 12.05, 12.06, 12.10, 19.01

12.02,12.04, 12.05, 12.06, 12.10, 19.01

19.01

12.02,12.04, 12.05, 12.06, 12.10, 12.15, 19.01

7.03 Lot and Yard Regulations

All measurements shall be taken from the lot line to the building line (see definitions). A

parking lot is not included as a portion of a side yard or rear yard (see Chapter 12.04).

25



The average front and rear yard setback existing on each street shall apply.

There are no side yard or lot area restrictions.

See also Adjustments to Yard Regulations (Chapter 13) for specific exceptions.

When abutting a residential district, uses, and structures shall have a minimum front
yard of 25 feet, minimum side yards of 7 feet, and minimum rear yard of 30 feet.

The maximum height of all buildings and structures shall not exceed 45 feet.

26



Chapter 8 — GB: General Business District

The purpose of this district is to provide a commercial area for those establishments service the
general shipping needs of the trade area, with specific attention to the carrying capacity of
roads and streets, and to encourage provision of adequate off-street parking and loading space.
It is not the intent of this district to encourage the extension or enlargement of strip

commercial areas.

8.01 Permitted Uses

Permitted Use

Retail Trade or Service

Office

Personal Service

Hotel/Motel

Motor Vehicle Service
Station/Gas Dispensing Station

Printing Plant

Applicable Standards

12.02, 12.04, 12.05, 12.06, 12.10

12.02,12.04, 12.05, 12.06, 12.10

12.02,12.04, 12.05, 12.06, 12.10

12.02,12.04, 12.05, 12.06, 12.10

12.02, 12.04, 12.05, 12.06, 12.10

12.02,12.04, 12.05, 12.06, 12.10

27



Hospital/Clinic

Public Utility Facility

Mortuary

Private Club

Churches

Arcade

Greenhouse/Nursery

Car Wash

Motor Vehicle Sales, Display,
and Service

Farm Store, Feed Store

12.02, 12.04, 12.05, 12.06, 12.10

12.02,12.04, 12.05, 12.06, 12.10

12.02,12.04, 12.05, 12.06, 12.10

12.02,12.04, 12.05, 12.06, 12.10

12.02, 12.04, 12.05, 12.06, 12.10;
All parking lots being 8 feet from all residential properties

12.02,12.04, 12.05, 12.06, 12.10;
Subject to not being located within 500 feet of an adult
use*

12.02,12.04, 12.05, 12.06, 12.10

12.02, 12.04, 12.05, 12.06, 12.10;

Five storage spaces for each bay beyond off-street parking
requirements and the water from the car wash contained
on the site

12.02, 12.04, 12.05, 12.06, 12.10

12.02,12.04, 12.05, 12.06, 12.10;
Subject to only accessory storage of fertilizer or farm
chemicals on the site

28



Commercial Recreation Facility

Accessory Use and Structure
(i.e. garage, shed, etc)

Commercial Parking
Lots/Parking Ramps

Cannabis Dispensary

8.02 Conditional Uses

Conditional Use

Adult Oriented Business

Electrical Substation

On/Off-Sale Alcoholic
Beverage Establishment

Wireless Communication
Facility on existing support
structure

12.02, 12.04, 12.05, 12.06, 12.10

12.02,12.03;
(see definition)

12.02,12.04, 12.06, 12.10

12.02,12.04, 12.05, 12.06, 12.10, 12.15

Measured from the closest point of the outside walls of both structures

Applicable Standards

12.02, 12.04, 12.05, 12.06, 12.10, 19.01;
SDCL 11-12-2,3

12.02, 12.10, 19.01;
An opaque screen, six feet in height located at all setback
lines

12.01, 12.02, 12.04, 12.05, 12.06, 12.10, 19.01

12.08, 19.01, and not within an identified floodplain area

29



Telecommunications Tower

Day Care Center

Motor Vehicle Repair Shop

Off-Premise Signs

Veterinarian

Bus Passenger Terminal

Broadcast Tower

Campground

Kennel

Accessory Structure (i.e.

garage, shed, etc.) which does
not meet the requirements as
allowed within Chapter 12.03

12.02, 12.04, 12.05, 12.06, 12.10, 19.01

12.02,12.04, 12.05, 12.06, 12.10, 19.01;
Adequate and safe playground area with a fence four (4)
feet high (see 12.07)

12.02,12.04, 12.05, 12.06, 12.10, 19.01

Subject to adequate number of parking spots to allow
temporary storage of the cars only while being repaired,
not exceeding twenty-one (21) days.

12.02,12.06, 19.01

12.02,12.04, 12.05, 12.06, 12.10, 19.01;
No outdoor kenneling of dogs within 1,000 feet of a
residential area*

12.02,12.04, 12.05, 12.06, 12.10, 19.01

12.02, 12.08, 12.10, 19.01;
Subject to being located at least 300 feet from a residential
district*

12.02,12.04,12.05, 12.06, 12.10, 19.01;

Lot must contain at least 2,000 sq. ft. and supplied with city
water and sanitary sewer services; access road on the
campground site shall be paved or surfaced in a similar
manner to the adjacent public roads, shall be approved by
the City, and shall be 14 feet for one way and 20 feet for
two way roads

12.02,12.04,12.05, 12.06, 12.10, 19.01;
Located 1,000 feet from residential district area*

19.01

30



* Measured from the closest point of the outside walls of both structures.

8.03 Lot and Yard Regulations

All measurements shall be taken from the lot line to the building line (see definitions). A
parking lot is not included as a portion of a side yard or rear yard (see Chapter 13.04).

Lot Area Lot Width

All Uses N/A Oft:eio
All Uses N/A 51::e100
All Uses N/A mf)?i ?eret

25 feet
See #3

25 feet
See #3

25 feet
See #3

Side Yard Rear Yard
7 feet 5 feet
See #1, 3 See #2
7 feet 5 feet
See #1, 3 See #2
7 feet 5 feet
See #1, 3 See #2

Maximum

Height

45 feet

45 feet

45 feet

#1 A side yard of 15 feet shall be required where a lot is adjacent to or abuts a residential

district.

#2 A rear yard of 30 feet shall be required where a lot is adjacent to or abuts a residential

district.

#3 There shall be a required front yard on each street side of a double frontage lot. There

shall be a required front yard on each street side of a corner lot.

31



#4 See also Adjustment to Yard Regulations (Chapter 13) for other specific exceptions.

32



Chapter 9 — LI: Light Industrial District

This district is intended to provide for a number of light manufacturing, wholesale,

warehousing, and service uses in an attractive industrial park-like setting.

9.01 Permitted Uses

Permitted Use

Wholesale Trade

Light Manufacturing

Contractor’s Shop/Storage
Yard

Office

Public Utility Facility

Frozen Food Locker

Wireless Communication
Facility on Existing Structure

Applicable Standards

12.02,12.04, 12.05, 12.06, 12.10

12.02,12.04, 12.05, 12.06, 12.10

12.02,12.04, 12.05, 12.06, 12.10;
Subject to screening of all outdoor storage from view

12.02,12.04, 12.05, 12.06, 12.10

12.02,12.04, 12.05, 12.06, 12.10

12.02,12.04, 12.05, 12.06, 12.10

12.02, 12.04, 12.05, 12.06, 12.10

33



Printing Plant

Motor Vehicle Service Station

Electrical Substation

Lumberyard

Retail Trade or Service

Truck or Bus Wash

Truck Repair, Sales, and
Service

Farm Store or Feed Store

Farm Implement Sales,
Display, and Service

Accessory Use and Structure
(i.e. garage, shed, etc)

12.02,12.04, 12.05, 12.06, 12.10

12.02,12.04, 12.05, 12.06, 12.10

12.02, 12.10;
Opaque screen, six feet in height, located as far back as all
setback lines

12.02, 12.04, 12.05, 12.06, 12.10

12.02,12.04,12.05, 12.06, 12.10;
Only when it is an accessory use when in conjunction with
the primary use of wholesaling or manufacturing

12.02, 12.04, 12.05, 12.06, 12.10;
All water from the truck or bus wash being contained on
the site

Subject to no unscreened outdoor storage of parts

12.02,12.04, 12.05, 12.06, 12.10;
Only accessory storage of fertilizer or farm chemicals on
the site

12.02,12.04, 12.05, 12.06, 12.10

12.02, 12.03;
(see definition)

34



Cannabis Dispensary

9.02 Conditional Uses

Conditional Use

Telecommunications Tower

Off-Premise Sign

Bus/Truck Terminal

Recycling Collection or
Processing Facility

Automobile Storage Yard

Broadcast Tower

Motor Vehicle Repair Shop

12.02,12.04, 12.05, 12.06, 12.10, 12.15

Applicable Standards

12.02, 12.04, 12.05, 12.06, 12.10, 19.01

12.02, 12.06, 19.01

12.02, 12.04, 12.05, 12.06, 12.10, 19.01

12.02,12.04, 12.05, 12.06, 12.10, 19.01;
Screening of all recyclable material from view

12.02,12.04, 12.05, 12.06, 12.10, 19.01;
Screening of the storage yard with fence, berm vegetation
or placement on the lot

12.02,12.04, 12.05, 12.06, 12.10, 19.01;
Located at least 300 feet from a residential district

12.02,12.04, 12.05, 12.06, 12.10, 19.01;
An adequate number of parking spots to store the cars and
screen parts and materials from view

35



Warehouses, mini-warehouses

Consumer Storage Units

Municipally Owned Waste
Water Treatment Facility

Accessory Structure (i.e.

garage, shed, etc.) which does
not meet the requirements as
allowed within Chapter 12.03

12.02,12.04, 12.05, 12.06, 12.10, 12.16, 19.01

12.02,12.04, 12.05, 12.06, 12.10, 12.16, 19.01

12.02,12.04, 12.05, 12.06, 12.10, 19.01

19.01

9.03 Lot and Yard Regulations

F Maxi
Lot Area Lot Width ront Side Yard Rear Yard M
Yard Height
10,0 . 25 feet* 15 feet*

Mini-Warehouse ’ f?o 9 100 feet* Sei #e4e 45 SSeeeES 20 feet* 45 feet
25 feet 10 feet 30 feet 45 feet

All Uses N/A 75feet  ce#a  See#2,4  See#3  See#l
* These requirements apply to the commonly owned space or common space owned by

the owner of an individually platted lot. This is the space that surrounds the individually

platted lots. For setbacks related to the individually platted lots, see Exception #7.

Exceptions:

36



#1

#2

#3

#4

#5

#6

#H7

A conditional use permit will be required for any structure having a maximum height
exceeding 45 feet. (See 19.01).

A side yard of 15 feet shall be required only where a lot is adjacent to or abuts a
residential district.

A rear yard of 35 feet shall be required where a lot is adjacent to or abuts a residential
district.

There shall be a required front yard on each street side of a double frontage lot. There
shall be a required front yard on each street side of a corner lot.

See also Adjustments to Yard Regulations (Chapter 13) for other specific exceptions.

Waste water treatment facilities are exempt from minimum yard or setback
requirements.

Zero lot line option: Mini-warehouses held in common ownership and located on a
single lot line shall observe the standard setback rules prescribed above. However, the
lot may be subdivided into separate lots upon which individually owned mini-
warehouses are located if the lots to be created through the subdivision process are
individually platted. In such event, the setbacks for the individually platted lots shall be

as follows:
a. Front Yard Setback(s): Zero (0) feet.
b. Rear Yard Setback(s): Zero (0) feet.

C. Side Yard Setback(s): Zero (0) feet.

Mini-warehouses composed of two (2) or more individually platted lots already utilizing
the zero lot line option described above shall not be considered Non-Conforming.

This exception only applies if the individually platted lots are surrounded by either: (1) a
space commonly owned by the owners of the individually platted lots; or (2) a common
space surrounding the individually platted lots that is entirely owned by the owner or
owners of an individually platted lot. The common space surrounding the individually
platted lots shall meet all applicable requirements found in the Lot and Yard Regulations
table above.

37



38



Chapter 10 — HI: Heavy Industrial District

This district is intended to provide for general industrial uses which may create some nuisance,
and which are not properly associated with, nor compatible with residential, office, or
commercial establishments. All uses in this district shall comply with any state or local
regulations regarding noise, emissions, dust, odor, glare, vibration, or heat when applicable.

10.01 Permitted Uses

Permitted Use Applicable Standards

Wholesale Trade 12.02, 12.04, 12.05, 12.06, 12.10

General Manufacturing Other

Than Those Listed Below 12.02,12.04, 12.05, 12.06, 12.10

Farm Store or Feed Store 12.02,12.04, 12.05, 12.06, 12.10
Contractor’s Shop/Storage 12.02, 12.04, 12.05, 12.06, 12.10;
Yard Subject to screening of all outdoor storage from view
Public Utility Facility 12.02,12.04, 12.05, 12.06, 12.10
Frozen Food Locker 12.02,12.04,12.05, 12.06, 12.10

Wireless Communication
Facility on Existing Support 12.02,12.04, 12.05, 12.06, 12.10
Structure

39



Electrical Substation

Retailing

Bus and Truck Wash

Truck Repair, Sales, and
Service

Fruit and Vegetable Canning
and Processing

Refining

Motor Vehicle Repair Shop

Accessory Use and Structure
(i.e. garage, shed, etc)

Airport

10.02 Conditional Uses

12.02, 12.10;
An opaque screen, six feet in height, must be located as far
back as all setback lines

12.02,12.04, 12.05, 12.06, 12.10;
Being an accessory use when in conjunction with a primary
use of wholesaling or manufacturing

12.02,12.04, 12.05, 12.06, 12.10;
All water from the truck or bus wash being contained on
the site

12.02,12.04, 12.05, 12.06, 12.10;
No unscreened outdoor storage of parts

12.02,12.04,12.05, 12.06, 12.10;

Traffic to and from the facility will not travel on residential
streets and the odor will not impact residential
neighborhoods

12.02,12.04, 12.05, 12.06, 12.10;

Traffic to and from the facility will not travel on residential
streets and the location shall not be located within % mile
of a residential area

12.02,12.04, 12.05, 12.06, 12.10;
An adequate number of parking spots to store the cars and
screen parts and materials from view

12.02, 12.03;
(see definition)

12.02,12.04,12.05, 12.06, 12.10;

Traffic to and from the airport will not travel on residential
streets and the location will not be within % mile of a
residential district

40



Conditional Use

Bus/Truck Terminal

Telecommunications Tower

Off-Premise Signs

Recycling Collection Facility

Manufacture of: Acid, Alcohol,
Ammonia, Asphalt, Bleach,
Cement, Chlorine, Dyestuffs,
Explosives, Fertilizer, Glue,
Gypsum, Lime, Oils, Paint,
Plaster or Paris, Shellac, Sizing,
Turpentine or Yeast

Stockyards/Slaughtering of
Animals

Rendering

Distillation of Products

Paper Manufacturing;
Smelting; Boilerworks

Applicable Standards

12.02,12.04, 12.05, 12.06, 12.10, 19.01

12.02,12.04, 12.05, 12.06, 12.10, 19.01

12.02, 12.06, 19.01

12.02,12.04, 12.05, 12.06, 12.10, 19.01;

Subject to any outdoor storage of recyclable materials
must be within an opaque screened area at least six feet in
height

12.02,12.04, 12.05, 12.06, 12.10, 19.01;

Traffic to and from the facility will not travel on residential
streets and the odor will not impact residential
neighborhoods

12.02,12.04, 12.05, 12.06, 12.10, 19.01;

Subject to traffic to and from the facility will not travel on
residential streets and the odor will not impact residential
neighborhoods

12.02,12.04, 12.05, 12.06, 12.10, 19.01;

Traffic to and from the facility will not travel on residential
streets and the location shall not be located within % mile
of a residential area

12.02,12.04,12.05, 12.06, 12.10, 19.01;

Traffic to and from the facility will not travel on residential
streets and the odor will not impact residential
neighborhoods

12.02,12.04, 12.05, 12.06, 12.10, 19.01;

Traffic to and from the facility will not travel on residential
streets and the location shall not be located within % mile
of a residential area

41



Tank Farm; Petroleum
Products Terminal

Grain Terminal; Grain

Processing

Salvage Yard

Manufacture and Storage of
Electric Transformers

Quarry

Automobile Storage Yard

Recycling Processing Facility

Broadcast Tower

Solid Waste Transfer Facility

Warehouse, mini-warehouse

12.02,12.04,12.05, 12.06, 12.10, 19.01;

Compliance with the City’s fire and health code and traffic
to and from the facility will not travel on residential streets
and the odor will not impact residential neighborhoods
12.02,12.04, 12.05, 12.06, 12.10, 19.01;

Traffic to and from the facility will not travel on residential
streets and the odor will not impact residential
neighborhoods

12.02,12.04, 12.05, 12.06, 12.10, 19.01;

Being sited off the main thoroughfares of the City, %2 mile
from a residential district and be screened from view; the
owner shall agree to control rodents as a condition of the
permit

12.02,12.04, 12.05, 12.06, 12.10, 19.01;
Chemicals associated with the transformers will be
contained in an acceptable manner

12.02,12.04,12.05, 12.06, 12.10, 19.01;
Subject to the site being located at least 1,000 feet from
commercial or residential properties

12.02,12.04, 12.05, 12.06, 12.10, 19.01;
Screenings of the storage yard with fence, berm,
vegetation or placement on the lot

12.02,12.04,12.05, 12.06, 12.10, 19.01;

Any outdoor storage of recyclable materials must be within
opaque screened area at least six feet in height and all
processing operations must be fully enclosed

12.02,12.04, 12.05, 12.06, 12.10, 19.01;
Being located at least 300 feet from a residential district

12.02,12.04, 12.05, 12.06, 12.10, 19.01;

Screening of the storage area with fence, berm, vegetation
or placement on the lot;

Traffic to and from the facility will not travel on residential
streets and the location shall not be located within % mile

of a residential area

12.02.12.04.12.05.12.06. 12.10. 12.16, 19.01

42



Consumer Storage Units 12.02,12.04, 12.05, 12.06, 12.10, 12.16, 19.01

Accessory Structure (i.e.

garage, shed, etc.) which does
not meet the requirements as
allowed within Chapter 12.03

19.01

10.03 Lot and Yard Regulations

Lot Area Lot Width Front Side Yard Rear Yard w
Yard Height
- 10,000 sq. « 25feet* 15 feet* "
Mini-Warehouse fr 100 feet See #4, #5 See #5 20 feet 45 feet
25 feet 7 feet 30 feet 45 feet
slloss N/A N/A See #4 See #2,4 See #3 See #1
* These requirements apply to the commonly owned space or common space owned by

the owner of an individually platted lot. This is the space that surrounds the individually
platted lots. For setbacks related to the individually platted lots, see Exception #6.

Exceptions:

#1 A conditional use permit will be required for any structure having a maximum height
exceeding 45 feet. (See 19.01).

#2 A side yard of 20 feet shall be required where a lot is adjacent to or abuts a residential
district.

43



#3

#4

#5

#6

A rear yard of 35 feet shall be required where a lot is adjected to or abuts a residential
district.

There shall be a required front yard on each street side of a double frontage. There
shall be a required front yard on each street side of a corner lot.

See also Adjustment to Yard Regulations (Chapter 13) for other specific exceptions.

Zero lot line option: Mini-warehouses held in common ownership and located on a
single lot line shall observe the standard setback rules prescribed above. However, the
lot may be subdivided into separate lots upon which individually owned mini-
warehouses are located if the lots to be created through the subdivision process are
individually platted. In such event, the setbacks for the individually platted lots shall be

as follows:

d. Front Yard Setback(s): Zero (0) feet.
e. Rear Yard Setback(s): Zero (0) feet.
f. Side Yard Setback(s): Zero (0) feet.

Mini-warehouses composed of two (2) or more individually platted lots already utilizing
the zero lot line option described above shall not be considered Non-Conforming.

This exception only applies if the individually platted lots are surrounded by either: (1) a
space commonly owned by the owners of the individually platted lots; or (2) a common
space surrounding the individually platted lots that is entirely owned by the owner or
owners of an individually platted lot. The common space surrounding the individually
platted lots shall meet all applicable requirements found in the Lot and Yard Regulations
table above.

44



Chapter 11 — PUD: Planned Unit
Development District

11.01 Intent Compliance with Comprehensive Plan

A. It is the intent of this district to provide flexibility from conventional zoning regulations
with increased public review for planned unit development district projects to:

1. Encourage well-planned, efficient urban development.

2. Allow a planned and coordinated mix of land uses which are compatible and are
harmonious, but previously discouraged by conventional zoning procedures.

3. Encourage more creative, higher quality and more ecologically sensitive urban
design with special consideration given to projects which incorporate desirable
design features, including but not limited to underground parking, orientation or
design to take advantage of solar energy, environmental preservation, historic
preservation, handicapped accessible structures, unique use of open spaces or
other desirable design features.

4, Improve communication and cooperation among the city, land developers, and
interested residents in the urbanization of new lands and the renewal of existing
deteriorated areas.

B. The developments within the Planned Unit Development District shall comply with the
policies and design standards of the City of Crooks Comprehensive Plan. The
development shall be mutually compatible with adjacent projected developments.

11.02 Procedure

A Initial Development Plan.

1. When a petitioner wants to request a rezoning to the Planned Unit Development
District, it shall be submitted to the Director of Planning Zoning, showing the
information specified in 11.03 INITIAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN, a minimum of 30

45



B.

days prior to the Planning Commission meeting at which consideration is
desired. After the planned unit development request has been reviewed, the
Planning Commission shall make a recommendation to the City Council on the
requested rezoning. The City Council shall then act to approve or deny the
request.

This request for rezoning is subject to the requirements for amendment of the
zoning regulations specified in 18.01 of the 2009 Revised Crooks Zoning
Regulation. No building permit shall be issues within the development until the
final development plan is approved and the plat is filed.

Final Development Plan.

Prior to construction on any lots in the Planned Unit Development, the petitioner
shall present a final development plan showing the information specific in 11.04
FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN, to the Planning Commission, who shall have the sole
authority to approve, deny, or amend the plan.

The final development plan may be submitted in conjunction with the initial
development plan for concurrent approval on any subareas the developer is
ready to commit to a final plan. All the information required for both an initial
and final development plan must be shown for the area submitted for
concurrent approval, except that the developer may reference the requirements
of one of the traditional zoning districts as the development standard for a
particular subarea.

Signs shall be posted on the property for a continuous period of 7 days
immediately prior to any public hearing held by the Planning Commission or City
Council to consider any final development plan. The signs shall be furnished by
the Zoning Administrator and posted by the applicant in the numbers and
locations prescribed by the Zoning Administrator.

Before any action shall be taken by the Planning Commission, the applicant shall

first file with the Zoning Administrator a certificate verifying that the signs have
been posted at the proper location before the time specified by this section.

46



Amendments.

1. Major Amendments. Major Amendments to the initial and/or final development
plan shall be required to be approved with a public hearing in the same manner
as provided for in 11.05. AMENDMENTS.

2. Minor Amendments.

Minor amendments to the initial and/or final development plan shall be
required to be approved by the Planning Commission. Notice of the
hearing shall be given by the posting of not less than 2 signs provided by
the Zoning Administrator. Before any action shall be taken by the
Planning Commission, the applicant shall first file with the Zoning
Administrator a certificate verifying that the signs have been posted at
the proper location and for the time specified.

Minor amendments to the initial development plan may also be made by
the submission and approval of a final development plan which is
changed from the approved initial development plan. Any amendments
shall be shown as a change from the initial development plan on the final
development plan, and further these changes shall be made on the initial
development plan on file with the County Register of Deeds.

3. Minimal Amendments. Minimal amendments to the final development plan
shall be submitted to the Zoning Administrator on a reproducible development
plan showing the requested changes. The Zoning Administrator may then
approve the change in writing if he/she deems it appropriate.

11.03 Initial Development Plan

Upon application for rezoning to the Planned Unit Development District, the petitioner shall
present an initial development plan to the Planning Commission for review, and to the City
Council, for their approval showing the following information:

Project name and legal description.

A preliminary subdivision plan in compliance with Article 4 of the City of Crooks

Subdivision Regulations.

47



C. The proposed development scheme showing the following information:

1. The proposed land uses, including the number and type of proposed residential
buildings, the proposed number of dwelling unit per building, the number and
type of any proposed nonresidential building and their square footage.

2. The proposed maximum density of the development, which shall not exceed the
density allowed in the traditional zoning districts for similar uses, except where
unique physical, environmental, or design characteristics make such densities
undesirable.

3. The proposed maximum height which shall be no greater than that required in
the traditional zoning districts for similar uses, except where unique physical,
environmental, or design characteristics make the setbacks undesirable.

4, The proposed maximum height which shall be no greater than that required in
the traditional zoning districts for similar uses, except where unique, physical,

environmental, or design characteristics make the heights undesirable.

5. Proposed design features illustrating compatibility to the surrounding
environment and neighborhood.

6. Anticipated subarea development sequence.

D. In addition, the developer shall provide an 8” x 11” scaled rendering on mylar of the
approved initial development plan showing each of the subareas.

11.04 Final Development Plan

A Prior to construction on any lots in the Planned Unit Development Zoning District, the
petitioner shall present a final development plan to the Planning Commission for their
approval. When a subarea is proposed by the developer for only single-family detached
homes or 2-family attached units, a final development plan will not be required.

B. Final development plan approval shall expire 1 year from the date upon which it
becomes effective if no work has commenced. Upon written request to the Zoning

48



Administrator and prior to the final development plan approval expiration date, a time
extension for the final development plan approval may be granted.

The final development plan shall show the following information:

1. The subdivision name, the legal description, and the individual project name (if
any).
2. Boundaries of the subarea or subareas submitted for approval superimposed on

the map of the initial development plan.

3. A subdivision plat of the subarea or subareas submitted for approval in
compliance with Article V of the Subdivision Ordinance.

4, A scale drawing showing the following information will be required:
a. Size and location of proposed structures including height and number of
units.
b. Calculated floor area for each structure and a generic listing of the uses

within the structure.

C. Off-street parking lot arrangement designating all parking spaces, off-
street loading spaced and any outdoor trash container.

d. Any sidewalks, bikeways or other paths.

e. Any outdoor lighting, type and location. Standard street lights owned by
the City are not required.

f. Landscaping plans showing the type and location of any walls or fences,
the placement, size, and species of any trees or shrubs and berms in

areas that will be sod or seeded.

g. All existing and proposed utilities, drainage ways, water courses, and
location of above ground existing utilities on adjacent property.

h. Proposed final ground contours.

49



i Curb cuts and all private drives.

j- Adjacent, existing, and proposed uses.

k. First floor elevation for any structure located in a flood hazard area.

Accurate building elevation of all proposed structures.

m. Documentation of the ownership and maintenance responsibility of any
common open spaces, structures or facilities, including private streets.

n. Any subareas proposed for multiple residential development will be
required to provide an open area for recreation. The open spaces shall
not be included in any required yard, but shall be located in the same
subarea it is intended to serve.

o. Proposed parking and loading spaces which shall be in conformance with
12.04 of the 2009 Revised Crooks Zoning Regulation, except where
unique physical, environmental, or design characteristics make the
requirements undesirable.

p. Unless otherwise specified on the final development plan, all
development standards shall be the same as those set forth in the
traditional zoning districts, which shall be the same as those set forth in
the traditional zoning districts, which shall be referenced for each
subarea as part of the final development plan. For example: townhouses
on block X shall be developed in conformance with the requirements of
R-2 Residential District.

11.05 Amendments

A Major Amendments. The following changes in an initial and/or final development plan
are considered major amendments:

1. Any change in the proposed land uses should follow a rezoning process detailed
in 18.01 of the 2009 Revised Crooks Zoning Regulation.

50



2. An increase in the density above that provided in division (B)(5) below should
follow a rezoning process detailed in 18.01 of the 2009 Revised Crooks Zoning
Regulation.

Minor Amendments. The following changes in an initial and/or final development plan
are considered minor amendments:

1. Any adjustment in the size or shape of the building envelope (increasing the
height or reducing the building setback).

2. Any change in the number or location of curb cuts.

3. Any decrease in the size of required open areas.

4, A minor change in the street pattern.

5. Any increase in density of a subarea:
a. Less than 25% for a subarea with less than 8 units.
b. Less than 15% for a subarea with between 9 and 20 units.
C. Less than 8% for a subarea with 21 units or more.

6. Any change in the number of parking spaces.

7. Any minor change to on-premise signage.

8. Any major change in the street pattern.

Minimal Amendments. The following changes in an initial and/or final development
plan are considered minimal amendments:

1. Any adjustment of a building within a previously established building envelope.
2. A reduction in density and scale.
3. Any minimal change in the street pattern.

51



4.

5.

Any minimal change in the parking and loading requirements.

Any minimal change to on-premise signage.

52



Chapter 12 — Additional Use Regulations

12.01 Reserved

[Reserved]

12.02 Visibility at Intersections and Driveways

A Intersection Safety Zones. No monument style sign or other sign with its face less than
twelve (12) feet above grade or any fence, wall, shrub, or other obstruction to vision
exceeding three (3) feet in height above the established street grade shall be erected,
planted, or maintained within a triangular area of a corner lot that is included by
measuring straight lines along the curb lines at points 40 feet distant in each direction
from the intersection of the curbs and a straight line connecting the first two lines. (See

Figure 1).

B. Driveway Safety Zones. No monument style sign or other sign with its face less than ten
(10) feet above grade or any fence, wall, shrub, or other obstruction to vision exceeding
three feet in height above the established street grade shall be erected, planted, or
maintained within the area from the curb line to ten (10) feet behind the curb line. (See

Figure 1).

Driveway Safety Zones
5|,
o
&le
o
z House g'a
o
]
: i
9 A
: ;
2 fr o
5 T [oriveway Safely Zoneg” 2ot
Curts Line || EG] B
Street
Figure 1

53



12.03 Accessory Buildings, Garages, Recreational Facilities, and
Miscellaneous Structures

A. In General.

1. Accessory structures, excluding miscellaneous structures in Section 12.03(B)(5),
shall not exceed 30% of the rear yard area.

2. Any structure placed within an easement that impedes the access or intended
use of that easement may be removed by the City or the City’s representative at
the owner’s expense.

3. Accessory buildings may not be used for dwelling purposes.

4, No accessory building or use shall be constructed upon a lot until the
construction of the main building has been actually commenced, and no
accessory building shall be used unless the main building on the lot is also being
used.

5. A building permit is required for accessory building over two hundred (200)
square feet.

6. The garage(s) shall be used only by persons residing on the premises. Any
garage not meeting these requirements shall be allowed only as a conditional
use pursuant to Section 19.01.

7. Conditional Use Application Fee. Upon application and before any conditional
use hearings are held, the applicant shall pay a fee to the Finance Officer.

8. Height shall be measured from grade. Grade is the average elevation of the land
around a building. See Definitions BUILDING, HEIGHT.

54



9. Stop Order. Section 15.03. Whenever any work or use is being done contrary to
the provisions of this title, the Authorized Official may order the work or use
stopped by notice in writing served on any person engaged in the doing or
causing such work to be done, and any such persons shall forthwith stop work or
use until authorized by the Authorized Official to proceed with the work or use.

10. Penalties for Violation. Section 1.05 ‘... Any person who violates this ordinance
or fails to comply with any of its requirements shall upon conviction be subject
to penalties established by South Dakota Law.’

11. No carports will be allowed in Residential Districts.

Residential Districts.

1. Accessory Buildings: Two hundred (200) square foot and under (counts as your
one allowable building).

a. Shall be setback at least four (4) feet from the side and rear property
lines.

b. Shall not be located in the front yard.

C. Accessory Buildings. Two hundred (200) square feet and under do not
require a building permit.

d. Shall not be more than twelve (12) feet (one story) in height.

e. Shall not have a door opening that exceeds six (6) feet in width.

f. Shall not be located within ten (10) feet of the principal structure.

g. Cloth, canvas, plastic sheets and tarps, and similar materials are not

allowed as primary materials, except greenhouses are allowed to have
sheeting (glass or plastic) of prescribed building thickness as an outer

55



covering. As an exterior material, steel siding and roofing is allowed on
accessory buildings two hundred (200) square feet and under only.

Shall be limited to a maximum of one (1) accessory building per lot.

Shall not be placed on drainage, utility, or other easements.

Accessory Buildings: Two hundred and one (201) square feet to four hundred

(400) square feet (counts as your one allowable building).

a.

Shall be setback at least four (4) feet from the side and rear property
lines.

Shall not be located in the front yard.

Shall not have a wall height exceeding ten (10) feet in height.

Shall not have a roof pitch that exceeds a 6:12 pitch and shall not be
more than one story in height.

Shall not have a door opening that exceeds six (6) feet in width.

Shall not be located within ten (10) feet of the principal structure.

The size of the accessory building shall not exceed four hundred (400)
square feet or the requirements of Section 12.03(A)(1), whichever is less.
Any accessory building exceeding two hundred (200) square feet requires
a conditional use permit. Conditions may be attached to such a permit to
mitigate the impact on adjacent properties, including but not limited to,
increased setbacks, landscape screening, architectural color and detail
requirements, drainage provisions, and limiting additional exterior
storage.

Cloth, canvas, plastic sheets and tarps, and similar materials are not
allowed as primary materials. As an exterior material, corrugated steel
siding and roofing is also not allowed. The exterior finish of accessory
buildings 201-400 square feet in size shall be of materials matching the
principal structure in color and texture.

56



i Shall be limited to a maximum of one (1) accessory building per lot,
regardless of size.

j. Shall not be placed on drainage, utility, or other easements.

Detached Garages.

a. Primary Garage. In a situation where there will be no attached garage to
the dwelling structure, the detached garage becomes the primary garage.
In this situation only, the garage shall not exceed one thousand (1000)
square feet. All other detached garage and general conditions of this
ordinance will still apply. If there is no attached garage and one detached
garage, then one (1) additional accessory building four hundred (400)
square feet or less will be allowed OR one (1) 600 square foot detached
garage. All applicable detached garage rules will apply. All relevant
conditions of this ordinance will still need to be met.

b. Shall be setback at least seven (7) feet from the side and rear property
lines.

C. Shall not be located in the front yard.

d. Shall not have a wall height exceeding twelve (12) feet in height.

e. Shall not have a roof pitch that exceeds a 6:12 pitch and shall not be

more than one story in height.

f. Shall not have doors that exceed ten (10) feet in height.

g. Conditions may be attached to such a permit to mitigate the impact on
adjacent properties, including but not limited to, increased setbacks,
landscape screening, architectural color and detail requirements,
drainage provisions, and limiting additional exterior storage.

h. The exterior finish of detached garages shall be of materials matching the

principal structure in color and texture.

57



i The architectural design of detached garages must be similar to the
principal structure.

j- Detached garages shall be paved with a hard surfaced concrete or asphalt
driveway to an adjacent public street.

k. Any damage caused by a change in grading shall be the responsibility of
the land owner. Change from these approved elevations may cause
water drainage problems.

Shall not be placed on drainage, utility, or other easements.

Attached Garages.

a. Attached garages shall not exceed the main floor area of the principal
building.

b. Setbacks for attached garages shall be according to the zoning district
regulations.

C. Shall not have a wall height exceeding twelve (12) feet in height.

d. Shall not have doors that exceed ten (10) feet in height.

e. The exterior finish of the attached garages must be similar to the

principal structure.

f. Attached garages shall be paved with a hard surfaced concrete or asphalt
driveway to an adjacent public street.

g. One (1) additional detached garage of six hundred (600) square feet or
less OR one (1) additional accessory building, four hundred (400) square
feet or less, will be allowed on the condition that all relevant requirement

of this ordinance are met.

Miscellaneous Structures.

58



a. Swing sets, sandboxes, play structures, dog kennels, satellite dishes, and
similar structures shall not be located closer than four (4) feet from the
side or rear property lines, and shall not be located within the front yard
setback.

b. Any miscellaneous structure placed within an easement that impedes the
access or intended use of that easement may be removed by the City or
the City’s representative at the owner’s expense.

C. No miscellaneous structure, unless an integral part of the principal
building, shall be created, altered, or moved within ten (10) feet of the
principal building.

6. Recreational Facility.

a. Shall be set back at least five (5) feet from the side and ten (10) feet from
the rear property lines.

b. Shall not be placed on drainage, utility, and other easements.
C. Shall not be located in front of the principal structure.
d. A chain link or non-opaque fence not exceeding ten (10) feet in height

shall be allowed to enclose a recreational facility containing concrete,
asphalt, or similar material. If such a fence is used it shall be set back at
least five (5) feet from the side and ten (10) feet from the rear property
lines and may not be placed in front of the principal structure.

C. Nonresidential Districts.

1. One accessory building is allowed. Exception: Picnic shelters, gazebos and
similar structures may be allowed as additional accessory structures.

2. The maximum floor area allowed is two hundred (200) square feet. Exception:

Size may be increased up to four hundred (400) square feet with a conditional
use permit.

59



Exterior finish shall be of materials matching the principal structure in color and
texture.

Architectural design must be similar to the principal structure.

Location of the accessory structure shall have minimum negative impact on the
site and adjacent properties and shall meet the setbacks of the district.

Accessory structures shall not exceed the height of the principal structure.
Exception: Height may be increased with a conditional use permit.

Shall not be located in front of the principal structure.

Large Lot Developments (all lots in development exceeding 1.0 acres)

1.

One accessory building is allowed and shall not exceed 1000 square feet.

If less than 200 square feet, follow regulations outlined above in 12.03(B)(1).

If between 201 to 400 square feet, follow regulations outlined above in
12.03(B)(2).

If between 401 to 1000 square feet:

a. An approved building permit and conditional use permit are required
prior to grading or building.

b. Shall be setback at least seven (7) feet from the side and rear property
lines.

c. Shall not be located in the front yard.

d. Shall not have a wall height exceeding twelve (12) feet in height.

e. Conditions may be attached to such a permit to mitigate the impact on
adjacent properties, including but not limited to, increased setbacks,
landscape screening, architectural color and detail requirements,

drainage provision, and limiting additional exterior storage.

60



f. The exterior finish of detached garages shall be of materials matching the
principal structure in color and texture.

g. The architectural design of detached garages must be similar to the
principal structure.

h. Shall be paved with a hard surfaced concrete or asphalt driveway
connecting to a public street.

i. Any damage caused by a change in grading shall be the responsibility of
the landowner. Change from these approved elevations may cause water
drainage problems.

j- Shall not be placed on drainage, utility, or other easements.

k. All relevant conditions of this ordinances will still need to be met.

12.04 Off-Street Parking

A. General Conditions.

1. No parking spaces are permitted in the required front or side yard in any district
except for the portions of the front yard necessary for hard surfaced driveways
or as otherwise provided in this title. Parking spaces in backyards shall be
prohibited in the R-1 and R-3 districts. Parking spaces in the backyards shall be
allowed only by conditional use in the R-2 district.

2. Driveways shall not exceed 36 feet in width.

a. An exception for 40 feet driveways shall be allowed for businesses
expecting tanker truck traffic.

b. Additional off-street parking is permitted abutting the primary structures’
primary garage in the R-1 Zoning District. The width of the parking area
must not exceed fourteen (14) feet and must not extend beyond the
depth of the primary garage. Additional parking must be hard surfaced

61



with asphalt or concrete. Additional off-street parking must not interfere
with natural drainage. All easement, zoning, and code enforcement
regulations must also be adhered to.

3. Each parking space shall be directly accessible to an access aisle.

4, Except in conjunction with a legal nonconforming business, it is unlawful for any
person to park, store, leave, or permit the parking, storing, or leaving of any
commercial vehicle in a NRC, R-1, R-2, or R-3 Zoning District, unless the vehicle is
parked in connection with the performance of a service. The transferring of
refuse from a smaller satellite vehicle to a large packer garbage truck is
prohibited.

5. All parking, loading, and maneuvering and drive areas thereto shall be hard
surfaced with asphalt or concrete.

6. The parking requirements in this section shall not be applicable to property in
the CB Central Business District, except for residential uses which are authorized
by a conditional use permit.

B. Required Parking Spaces.

In computing the number of required off-street parking spaces, the floor area shall mean the
gross floor area of the specific use, excluding any floor or portion used for parking. Where
fractional spaces result, the parking spaces required shall be the nearest whole number. For
the number of off-street parking and loading spaces required in all other districts, see TABLE 1
below:

TABLE 1: Minimum Off-Street Parking & Loading Requirements:

Uses and Structures Minimum Parking Requirements

Single-Family and Two-Family

Dwellings 2 spaces for each dwelling unit

62



Multiple-Family Dwellings

Rooming and Boarding

Houses; Sororities and

Fraternities

Bowling Alleys

Church or Temple

Private Club or Lodge

High School

Elementary School

Eating and Drinking Places

Hospitals

Nursing, Convalescent and
Rest Homes

One and one-half (1 %) spaces for each dwelling unit of one
bedroom or less;

Two spaces for each dwelling unit of two bedrooms or
more

One (1) parking space for each two hundred (200) square
feet of floor area (one space per two beds)

Four (4) spaces per land

1 space for each four (4) seats in main setting area

One (1) parking space for each three hundred (300) square
feet of floor area

Four (4) spaces for each classroom or office room, plus one
(1) for each one hundred fifty (150) square feet of seating
area in any auditorium or gymnasium or cafeteria intended
to be used as an auditorium.

Two (2) spaces for each classroom or office room, plus one
(1) for each one hundred fifty (150) square feet of seating
area in any auditorium or gymnasium or cafeteria intended
to be used as an auditorium

One (1) space for each one hundred (100) square feet of
gross floor area or one (1) space for each three seats,
whichever is greater.

1 space for each bed

1 space for each 3 beds

63



Auditoriums, Theaters, and
Places of Public Assembly

Hotels and Motels

Funeral Homes

Retail Sales Establishments

Medical and Dental Clinics

Manufactured Home Parks

Industrial Uses

Service Establishments

Wholesale and Distribution
Establishment

1 space for each four (4) seats of design capacity

One (1) space for each two (2) rental rooms

One (1) space for each four (4) seats in the chapel

One (1) space for each three hundred (300) square feet
floor area

One (1) space for each two (2) staff members and full-time
employees, plus one (1) space for each six hundred (600)
square feet of gross floor area

Two (2) spaces for each manufactured home lot

One (1) space for each two (2) employees on the maximum
working shift

One (1) space for each three hundred (300) square feet of
floor area

One (1) space for each two (2) employees on the maximum
working shift

All other uses not specified above shall have minimum off-street parking and off-street loading

spaces as determined by the City Council.

12.05 Off-Street Loading Requirements

64



There shall be provided at the time any building is erected or structurally altered, off-street
loading spaces for the following uses:

Number of Off-Street Loading

Use Gross Square Feet Floor Area
Spaces
. o 25,000 — 50,000 One 14’ x 35’ space
e Every Additional 75,000 Add one 14’ x 35’ space
2:::;:}:::;‘;“";1:“‘* 5,000 — 20,000 One 14’ x 35’ space
Industrial and ! 20,000 — 100,000 Two 14’ x 35’ space
Every Additional 75,000 Add one 14’ x 35’ space

Wholesale Commercial

12.06 Signs

A. Sign Permits.

1. Permit Required.

Except as otherwise provided herein, it shall be unlawful for any person to erect,
alter, or relocate any sign without first obtaining a permit therefor from the City.

2. Permit Application.

An application for a sign permit shall be submitted to the Planning & Zoning
Administrator on a form as he or she may prescribe and shall include all
information as may be required for a complete understanding of the proposed
sign and all other information necessary to show full compliance with this
Ordinance and all other federal, state, and local laws.

If the Planning & Zoning Administrator determines that a proposed sign
conforms to the requirements of this ordinance and all other federal, state, and

65



local laws, the Planning & Zoning Administrator shall issue the permit as soon as
practicable.

Validity of Permit.

The issuance of granting of a permit shall not be construed to be a permit for, or
an approval of, any violation of any of the provisions of this Ordinance or of any
federal, state, or local law. Permits presuming to give authority to violate or
cancel one (1) or more provisions of this Ordinance or of any 